
Vincent M. Sugent 
7768 Pleasant Lane 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
July 11,2009 

Karen Gorman 
U.S. Office of Special Counsel 
1730 M Street, N.W., Suite 300 
Washington, D. C. 20036-4505 

Dear Karen, 

Thank you for the time and effort you have put forth over the allegations I have made 
concerning safety and abuses of authority at Detroit Metro Airport. Words were difficult 
to come by to describe the satisfaction with the investigation findings, especially ceasing 
an unsafe operation, ultimately protecting the safety of the flying public. 

I was also pleased with the substantiation of managerial conduct, but have concerns over 
how the issues were addressed. Deliberately lying, misleading or being disingenuous, 
however it is described, was done to continue to put airport capacity before the safety of 
the flying public. If this conduct is not properly addressed, and I believe it was not, these 
situations will continue to happen. Management's fraudulent activities should not be 
minimized or arbitrarily dismissed. 

ALLEGATIONIFINDING 1 and 2 

In Acting Administrator Lynne Osmus's letter to Assistant Inspector General Rick Beitel, 
she states that management misunderstood the AOV verbal out briefing and it was not 
until management received the AOV October 2007 written response that they realized 
that it differed from the August verbal briefing. It strikes me as odd that nowhere in any 
of the documents I received does it state when DTW management received or had 
knowledge of the AOV written response. This is an important component to the Senator 
Levin deception and being able to continue the Southwest Flow in part or in its entirety. 

In August 2007, after the AOV left the facility, management began verbally briefing 
controllers on how to properly "hit gaps", (the very verbiage that Mr. Cooper utilized in 
his September 13 letter), when departing runway 21 right over the runway 27 left arrivals. 
This is exactly one of the non-compliant issues that AOV verbally briefed the facility in 
August 2007. So I am at a loss as to what management misunderstood ii-om the AOV 
briefing given they were acting upon one of the items specifically mentioned in the 
October 2007 memorandum. (Attachment 1) During the briefings, supervisors were 
stating that AOV said what we were doing was fine yet briefing us on how to hit the 
gaps. 
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In the body of the October 2007 memorandum it is stated that 5 of the 17 OEP airports 
with intersecting runwaylflight path operations were audited. At the top of the October 
2007 memorandum from Anthony Ferrante, Director, Air Traffic Safety Oversight 
Service, AOV-I, (Attachment 1), is a hand written "due by" date of October 19,2007. 
Also in the body of the memorandum it states that a formal response is required within 10 
working days from receipt of this memorandum. This means that whatever facility 
received attachment 1, with the October 19, 2007 due by date, received it on October 4, 
2007 from Anthony Mello, Acting Vice President, Safety Services or Bruce Johnson, 
Vice President, Terminal Services. Assuming that all things are equal, all 5 of the 
audited facilities would have received the memorandum around the same time if not the 
same day. The specific date of October 4 was achieved by counting back 10 working 
days from October 19, excluding weekends and the Monday, October 8 Columbus Day 
holiday, which puts the receipt date at October 4. 

That being said and just for a moment lets believe that DTW management misunderstood 
the AOV August 2007 briefing. This document also requires a follow up response from 
ATO-S by November 13,2007, the precise reason that ATO-S was at DTW October 15-
17, 2007, so they could see the progress of the 10 working day response and meet the 
November 2007 deadline. So that means that around October 4, 2007, DTW 
management knew of the AOV written response and did absolutely nothing to address 
their newly discovered information until after the A TO-S October 17, 2007 visit. 

Did management temporarily suspend the Southwest Flow in October 2007 because 
ATO-S stated the facility was noncompliant? Nowhere in Mr. Figliuolo'stestimony did 
he state that ATO-S told him the flow was unsafe. AOV told the facility that they were 
noncompliant and did nothing to correct the issue, so why would this time be any 
different. Mr. Figliuolo stated that he did not know that noncompliant meant unsafe, so 
why the different reactions? Did they suspend it because of the operational error? AOV 
reported an error in August 2007 and the facility did not suspend the flow or charge a 
controller with an error. Nowhere in the testimony did management state that they 
suspended the flow upon receipt of the October 2007 AOV memorandum. 

The reason they suspended the flow was because they got caught. They got caught not 
complying with the August 2007 AOV briefing and the October 2007 AOV letter. They 
got caught doctoring the briefing guide and conducting improper briefings. So their 
reaction was to suspend the flow on October 18, 2007 and blame the situation on 
controllers not hitting the gaps as briefed. Again, there is the "hitting the gaps" statement 
as stated in the Senator Levin letter. (Attachment 2) 

After October 18,2007, the DTW management team then departs on a dependent­
independent operation fiasco to continue departing runway 22 left into the flight path of 
the runway 27 left arrivals. Management, primarily Ms. Boliard and Mr. Grammes on 
Mr. Figliuolo's behalf, began stating that runway 22 left departures were independent of 
runway 27 left arrivals and therefore could depart without any regard to the 27 left 
arrivals. Then Mr. Grammes and Ms. Boliard issued no less than four clarifications 
between November 2007 and the eventual March 2008 cancellation of the Southwest 



Flow. These clarifications addressed none other than how to separate a runway 22 left 
departure from a runway 27 left go around, the "independent" runways. 
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I clearly showed in video playbacks that a runway 22 left departure is just as, if not more 
unsafe, than a runway 21 right departure when an aircraft goes around on runway 27 left. 
Mr. Paul Mueller, DTW controller, utilized a shift assessment form to clarifY the 
dependent/independent briefings which are replied to by management in writing. All Mr. 
Mueller received back from Mr. Grammes was the very briefing he questioned stapled to 
his shift assessment form he submitted. When I asked DTW management for the 
definitions of a dependent-independent operation, they stated there were no written 
definitions of these terms. (Attachment 3) 

Mr. Figliuolo, Mr. Grammes and Ms. Boliard did not misunderstand anything. Their 
August briefings after AOV left facility shows they did comprehend vi/hat they were told. 
Mr. Hartenstine's testimony supports this fact, as does Mr. Figliuolo's own testimony 
where he admits he was aware of AOV' s August non-compliance findings. If Mr. 
Figliuolo and Ms. Boliard misunderstood AOV, then why did management begin 
briefings addressing one ofthe non-compliant issues? Lies are lies and facts are facts and 
Mr. Figliuolo seemed to start blurring the line between the two, thinking his claims of 
ignorance, deception and omitting facts would keep him free of blame. 

In the August verbal briefings there was no mention of any 7110.65 paragraph let alone 
3-9-8 or 3-10-4 or any accompanying documentation. When the ATO-S team arrived in 
October 2007, Mr. Grammes banned me from attending the in briefing. This is when the 
typed information, that included paragraph 3-9-8, had to have been physically attached to 
the briefing guide that the controllers signed off on. During the briefings controllers 
asked for a copy of what they were being briefed on and the supervisors were unable to 
comply because there was nothing in the briefing package to give us. Management 
actually, in a fraudulent manner, added the information to give appearance that they 
properly briefed us, falsely putting the responsibility on the controllers and endangering 
the flying public. 

Later the next day is when ATO-S showed me the guide and its contents. Management 
needed to show something to ATO-S that they addressed paragraph 3-9-8 because that is 
what was briefed to them in August 2007 and was the paragraph that was specifically 
mentioned in the October 2007 memorandum. Why else would they go out of their way 
to choose paragraph 3-9-8 as the paragraph to put into the briefing guide? The briefing 
guide is what management offered as a guise of a formal response. 

After A TO-S left DTW on October 17 and after ATO-S observed the same paragraph 3-
9-8 violation that AOV observed and the facility charged Mr. Mueller with an operational 
error on October 18 based on the ATO-S information. Initially the operational error 
paper work listed the 7110.65 paragraph violated as 3-9-8. Later in the next week, the 
violated paragraph was changed to 3-10-4. This decision was definitely made due to the 
all the improprieties I brought up surrounding the briefing guide and the direction the 
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controllers were given. Management now had to separate themselves from the paragraph 
3-9-8 debacle. they mention it, they have to acknowledge the August 2007 briefing. 
There is another reason why management did not respond in a timely manner to Senator 
Levin. 

While I agree that the flow was ceased in part due to my allegations being referred to the 
Secretary in March 2008, it is important to realize that if they responded promptly to 
Senator Levin then the flow would have probably been ceased in November 2007. To 
use an excerpt from Mr. Grammes' verbiage under Finding 1, " .... Mr. Grarnrnes told us it 
would be inefficient for DTW to increase spacing between aircraft, stating that if DTW 
increased the gap between aircraft arrivals from 4 to 6 miles to strictly comply with 
paragraph 3-9-8, it is not even advantageous for us to run this configuration." That is 
what this was all about, airport capacity and Northwest Airlines. DTW management put 
airport capacity ahead of the safety of the flying public. Deceiving, misleading, being 
disingenuous, however one would like to describe management's actions and the delayed 
response to Senator Levin, was all done to be able to continually put the flying public in 
harms way to increase airport capacity. 

Management knew exactly why and what they were doing during the AOV August 2007 
visit, with the Senator Levin September 2007 letter and between August 2007 and the 
April 2008 letter to Senator Levin. For Mr. Figliuolo and Ms. Boliard this issue goes as 
far back as at least 2003 when this procedures safety was being questioned. Matt Bird 
and I spoke to Mr. Figliuolo, Ms. Boliard and then the current operations manager on 
numerous occasions about safety and the lack of proper direction surround the Southwest 
Flow. Also in June 2003, a controller was punished for insubordination when he 
questioned, along with Matt Bird and I, the safety and application of the Southwest Flow. 
Mr. Figliuolo used his authority in an abusive manner in punishing the controller and 
allowed aircraft to be put in harms ways to accomplish this. This is a dangerous 
characteristic trait for a man who manages personnel and facilities responsible for the 
safety of the flying public. Attachment 4 is offered as supporting evidence. 

If Mr. Figliuolo is going to state that he does not know the difference between non­
compliant and a safety compliance issue you have to look no further than his December 
20, 2005 memorandum. (Attachment 5) In this memorandum he repeatedly uses words 
like, "lack of planning, poor priorities, continued disregard for rules, regulations and use 
your own methods versus those prescribed in the 7110.65" to describe sloppy and 
nonchalant controllers. This leaves no question to his understanding of noncompliant and 
safety compliance. Ironic that Mr. Figliuolo's claims toward controllers actually describ~ 
his own actions. Although a clever tactic to evade guilt by claiming ignorance, the 
evidence overwhelmingly supports the opposite. How can a FAA Facility/Hub Manager 
at any airport, especially an OEP airport, claim they do not know that noncompliance of 
the 7110.65 would not compromise safety? The 7110.65 governs the safe operations of 
air traffic. 

In Ms. Osmus's letter to Mr. Beitel, she states, "The Director of Operations for Central 
Service Area counseled the DTW Manager. Closer supervision was provided by monthly 
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reports through November 2008, followed by quarterly reports to the Director." Calvin 
L. Scovel III, Inspector General, states, " .... that the Southwest Flow was discontinued in 
March 2008 because the corrective measures could not assure compliance with FAA 
Order 7110.65" and " .... As reflected in a follow-up AOV audit in March 2008, as well as 
information related to us during numerous interviews, considerable controller confusion 
resulted due to incomplete or inaccurate briefings .... " There are other references to the 
March 2008 discontinuation of the Southwest Flow as well. 

This is important because in July 2008 three B747's were departed off of runway 22 left 
with no regard to the runway 27 left arrivals and were initially classified as operational 
errors. This date falls within the March 2008 discontinuation date and the "monthly 
reports through November 2008" provided to the Director of Operations for Central 
Service Area dates. Between August 2008 and October 2008 I received documents, 
(Attachment 6), that not only contradict the findings of this investigation, but call into 
serious question what sort of counseling and closer supervision was provided to Mr. 
Figliuolo by the Director. 

In August 2008 in a memorandum to Nancy Kort, Director, Central Terminal Operations, 
a rambling paragraph is written in support of re-classifying the three operational errors to 
non-occurrences. The paragraph is as follows, "All three events pertained to a Heavy 
B747 departing Runway 22L at DTW while landings were being made on Runway 27L. 
More specifically, either the B747 had not flew across the extended centerline of Runway 
27L prior to the arrival being over the Runway 27L, or the arrivals on Runway 27L had 
not exited the runway prior to the B747 commencing takeoff roll on Runway 22L." This 
justification is a direct violation ofDTW N7110.l56, (Attachment 6), and at a minimum 
all three should have been classified as operational deviations. 

It is also stated in the August 2008 memorandum that the incidents were reported as 
errors based on a verbal interpretation from an AOV employee during an investigatory 
visit in March 2008. The March 2008 date has been mentioned as the date when the 
Southwest Flow was ceased because the corrective measures could not assure compliance 
with FAA Order 7110.65 and information related to the IG during numerous interviews 
that considerable controller confusion resulted due to incomplete or inaccurate 
managerial briefings. So, Mr. Figliuolo did not like what was found and conveyed to him 
in March 2008 from that AOV employee, so he had a subsequent discussion with AOV 
and ATO Terminal. These discussions determined that the events were not to be 
considered deviations or errors. Management states, in attachment 6, that the errors were 
based on "verbal" interpretations from an AOV employee. I find it very peculiar that 
management chose the use of "verbal" when describing the interpretation and even more 
peculiar that AOV did not follow up with a memorandum for Mr. Figliuolo and ATO-S 
given what took place in August and October 2007. 

So everything comes to a head in March 2008 and Mr. Figliuolo makes the decision to 
cancel authorization to conduct the Southwest Flow. Mr. Figliuolo's decision was based 
in part on the information received from the March 2008 AOV follow-up audit that the 
corrective measures and the continued confusion by supervisors and controllers, could 
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not assure compliance with the 7110.65. Then AOV and ATO-S reverse what was told to 
Mr. Figliuolo between August 2007 and March 2008 and say that there was not an issue 
with what took place in July 2008. Yet the July 2008 incidents were exactly what had 
been taking place at DTW beginning in May 2007. 

On September 12, 2008, Mr. James Bedow, Acting Director, Safety Assurance, and Mary 
Bradley, agreed with the documentation submitted by the Central Terminal Service Area 
and the Director's decision to re-classify the errors to non-occurrences. I requested the 
names of the ATO Terminal and AOV individuals contacted for the interpretations that 
justified the re-classifications. In October 2008, I received a response stating that no 
facility records identified the individuals. (Attachment 6) Mr. Mueller was charged with 
an operational error quoting paragraph 3-10-4 of the 7110.65, yet these three departures 
were classified as non-occurrences. 

Ms. Kort has been on watch for the entire Southwest Flow catastrophe. She was involved 
in Mr. Mueller's operational error and subsequent request for re-classification; she was 
involved in the insubordinate incident in 2003, she has responded to at least two 
Southwest Flow hotline calls, been involved with the three July 2008 incidents, has 
counseled the DTW Manager and requested monthly reports through November 2008 for 
closer supervision and followed up by quarterly reports from him. The monthly reports 
through November 2008 encompass the July 2008 incidents and supporting 
documentation in attachment 6. This does not appear to be solid counseling, support, or 
effective closer supervision. Ms. Kort appears to be encouraging and validating Mr. 
Figliuolo's behavior and actions. The fox appears to be watching the henhouse. 

On numerous occasions between August 2007 and March 2008 management was told by 
AOV and A TO-S that they were noncompliant and considerable controller confusion 
resulted due to incomplete or inaccurate briefings. Then some un-known A TO and AOV 
employees are contacted that convey guidance that contradicts and reverses everything 
the DTW Management team has been told over the past eight months and they did not 
bother to ask who they were. I am surprised management did not contact Senator Levin 
with an epiphany, retract the two previous letters and state that management was actually 
correct the entire time. 

One glaring example that Ms. Kort's counseling was not effective lies within an incident 
that occurred April 9,2009. (Attachment 7) There is confusion over whether or not a 
controller is required to verify the assigned runway when you do not actually issue 
instructions all the way to the runway, but only to point where you hand the aircraft to 
another controller. My intention is to not debate the correctness in the application or 
interpretation of the rule, but the manner in which Mr. Figliuolo handled the situation. 

In my initial contact with management over the counseling of the controller involved I 
questioned Mr. Grammes' direction that the first controller would assign a runway and 
issue taxi instructions that ground should confirm the aircraft has the correct runway 
assignment. While I agree with management, I noticed that the supervisor involved 
changed the word should to shall to avoid any confusion over the intent. This took place 



while the supervisor and controller were discussing the situation and Mr. Grammes' 
choice of words and they both agreed that the change was necessary. 
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Mr. Figliuolo's answer to the should/shall amendment in his response to me was to state, 
"The example of AT, (the supervisor), changing the wording from should to shall in the 
example I reviewed with her means to me the controller did not take the input provided 
and she had to mandate compliance." This is a lie. I spoke to the supervisor and she told 
me that Mr. Figliuolo and her never spoke about the situation or reviewed anything, let 
alone the reason she changed the should to shall. Also, in talking to the supervisor, she 
told me that the controller never refused to take her input and again this verbiage 
correction took place while the supervisor and controller were discussing the situation 
and Mr. Grammes' choice of words and they both agreed that the change was necessary. 

Mr. Figliuolo goes on to state in his response "that common sense should dictate, 
reasonable to expect the first controller, with the intent, is in fact", when describing what 
is expected of us as ground controllers and runway assignment. Again I agree with Mr. 
Figliuolo's thought process. He also states that a briefing for all the controllers on 3-7-2 
will be provided. 

Unfortunately it took management over a week to put together the briefing guide in 
attachment 7 and does not include one word written in Mr. Figliuolo's response to me of 
what is expected of the controllers. Not one word of clarification. It is only an entire 
copy of3-7-2 and includes the sub paragraphs. Only 3-7-2 and sub paragraph dare 
highlighted in red. Sub paragraph d covers the request of runway hold short instructions 
when not received and I am at a loss as to why it is highlighted. It has nothing to do the 
situation. 

So now when a controller correctly applies 3-7-2 c, we will go through the same thing we 
just went through. If their "intent, was in fact common sense, reasonable for them to 
expect" then put in the briefing guide that the initial controller shall assign a departure 
runway and confirm the aircraft has the correct runway assignment or words to that 
affect. Instcad what do we end up with, another incomplete and/or inaccurate briefing, 
something that was repeated as a problem with the Southwest Flow throughout the entire 
report. Effective management would have simply notified us of a change, incorporated 
that change into anyone of our numerous required manuals and moved on. Mr. Figliuolo 
did neither, he instead chose to hide behind his ignorance and allow a subordinate to 
operate as a maverick and add confusion where there had been none. 

If Mr. Figliuolo does not understand that the 7110.65 rules are for safety. If Mr. 
Figliuolo did not ask the supervisor in the above scenario what happened and interpreted 
this on his own, why would controllers believe anything Mr. Figliuolo says after the 
disastrous handling of the Southwest Flow? The fact is, Mr. Figliuolo has no credibility 
at DTW and he attempts to rule the facility with threats and intimidation as evident in the 
2003 suspension on the controller surrounding the Southwest Flow. 
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In 2003, the controller who was charged with insubordination for questioning a departure 
while conducting the Southwest Flow received a 14 day "suspension. The supervisor who 
was running the tower in July 2008 when the three B747's were departed received a three 
day suspension. Mr. Figliuolo, Ms. Boliard and Mr. Grammes were only counseled for 
the findings of the IG investigation. 

Furthermore, Mr. Grammes was laterally moved from the position of DTW Operations 
Manager to the position of Operations Manager, Detroit TRACON. Ms. Boliard 
accepted a one year temporary detail with ATO-S and worked out of the Willow Run 
facility. After Ms. Boliard's detail was up she was given the position of Willow Run 
Tower Air Traffic Manager. Mr. Figliuolo accepted a temporary detail of 120 days in 
Washington, D.C. and will return as the Motown Hub/DTW Manager on September 14, 
2009. 

There were multiple instances of airplanes being put in harms way for no legitimate 
reason and controllers were forced to work outside the rules with the threat of financial 
and disciplinary punishment like Mr. Figliuolo imposed on the suspended controller in 
2003. When this issue was challenged by that controller in 2003, Mr. Figliuolo 
suspended the controller for insubordination when all the controller wanted to do was 
apply the appropriate rules. DTW management deliberately ignored AOV, lied to a 
Senator, falsified government documents, intentionally disregarded government Order 
7110.65 and endangered the safety of the flying public and then claims ignorance after 
months of breaking the law. It appears that if a single isolated instance of a controller 
being disciplined for insubordination while trying to do what was right, then the DTW 
management team should probably be suspended for months if not removed from federal 
service based on their own deceitful actions. 

Their behavior is unacceptable, appalling and pitiful. I believe they should never be able 
to direct or manage personnel who perform duties that affect the safety of the National 
Air Space or perform those duties themselves. 

ALLEGATIONIFINDING 3 

I agree with the findings and recommendations contained in the report addressing the 
hold short lines/signage, SOP verbiage, ASDE-X depiction and controller training 
surrounding taxiway Q. 

The only problem is there has not been any action taken by management to institute any 
of the corrective actions. I have not been briefed or informed of any changes to our SOP, 
hold short lines/signage or the ASDE-X. 

The hold short sign issue was raised in part as a delay issue and specifically references 
the 1500' taxiway Q issue in November 29,2006 Wayne County Airport Authority 
meeting minutes. This was the only time I could find this issue raised in Wayne County 
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meeting minutes. The D711 0.134 dated February 1, 2007 was the next time the issue was 
addressed. (Attachment 8) 

In Mr. Scovel's findings he states, "Moreover, neither the DTW controllers and managers 
we interviewed, nor the Airports Division personnel we contacted, were able to definitely 
say whether one, the other, or both "hold short" lines are currently required." I am very 
curious as to what transpired between November 29,2006 and February 1,2007. 
Taxiway Q went from a signage and distance issue in November 2006 to what it morphed 
into in February 2007. There must have been further discussion between our facility 
Wayne County Airport Authority and possibility Airports Division at a minimum. 

This is what concerns management at DTW. Ronald Bazman, DTW Support Manager, in 
a May 5, 2009 memorandum, (Attachment 8), addresses the issuance of a taxiway 
connector between taxiway K and Y. My intention is to not debate the correctness in the 
application or interpretation of the rule, but the manner in which Mr. Bazman handled the 
situation. 

Mr. Bazman states, "Although our goal of safe surface operations is a shared 
responsibility with all users and interests on the field, please ensure your phraseology 
complies with the paragraph above to prevent confusion and a possible runway incursion 
or surface incident." Kilo 1 0 does not intersect a runway. Uniform does not intersect a 
runway. So what possible runway incursion or surface incident can occur? 
We have never, for the 12 112 years I have been at this facility, had a runway incursion or 
surface incident involving taxiways uniform, KlO or yankee. I have never, for the 12 112 
years I have been at this facility, had confusion or questions issuing the taxi instructions 
"uniform yankee" until Mr. Bazman's involvement. 

What Mr. Bazman has done is cause confusion. After issuing "uniform, KI0, yankee" 
aircraft join uniform and stop to ask questions. Questions like, "Where do you want us to 
join kilo? Or they will say, "After uniform say again" and when you re-issue the 
instructions they will say, "So you want us to join kilo?" If you re- issue the instructions 
as "uniform yankee" there are no problems. Also after issuing "uniform, KlO, yankee" 
aircraft will also just join kilo instead of yankee and go nose to nose with an opposite 
direction aircraft. I have stopped utilizing the phraseology Mr. Bazman mandated. 

Instead of addressing and correcting the issues surrounding taxiway Q, Mr. Bazman 
chose to chase his tail over a non-issue and create confusion where there was none. This 
again shows more of the same with confusing, incomplete and/or inaccurate briefings. 

ALLEGATIONIFINDING 4 

I agree with the findings surrounding the segregation of jets and props. Unfortunately 
these measures are more than likely going to be readdressed and adjusted. While this 
issue was being addressed, I spoke to Ms. Patricia Bynum, DTW Support Manager, about 
the increase injet traffic utilizing a prop corridor and the impact on noise abatement. Our 
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operations are bound by a lawsuit filed by local residents and noise abatement rules 
dictate how and where we are allowed to depart aircraft on a regular basis to comply with 
noise abatement. Ms. Bynum stated that there was not enough of an increase to have an 
impact. Last month I found out from Mr. Bazman that this in fact is an issue and is being 
looking into. 

ALLEGATION/FINDING 5 

I am not in total agreement with the findings and confused over the development of the 
new procedures and use of the electronic communication system. 

This is a two fold issue, the use of an electronic communication system and the 
assignment of a standard instrument departure (SID). Not all airlines or aircraft types are 
capable of receiving information via an electronic communication system. This 
deficiency does not prevent the issuance or utilization of a SID. The method of 
conveying what SID to use can be accomplished verbally or via electronic 
communication system. 

The problem here at DTW is that routes to certain airports are not on any SID. If an 
aircraft is capable of receiving information via electronic communication system, but the 
route to one of those certain airports is not a SID, we then have to issue the clearance via 
radio void the SID, but issue any applicable information from the SID. This would also 
apply to aircraft not capable of receiving information via electronic communication 
system. 

It does not matter whether the electronic communication system fails or not, the issue 
with routes to certain airports that are not on any SID would still apply. The argument 
that this is a workload issue and not a safety issue is weak at best. The reason for the 
development of electronic communication systems and SID's is to relieve workload to 
enhance safety and efficiency_ 

This is another example ofDTW management's ignorance of the operation and their lack 
of understanding in regard to safety. Sending a message to an aircraft that prints out in 
the cockpit with standardized routing is preferable to a voice transmission that could be 
misunderstood or written down in error is undeniable to anyone that understands how the 
air traffic system communication works. In the event that electronic communication is 
not available, issuing standard departures that are depicted on charts is preferable to 
listing instructions step-by-step. It does not take a rocket scientist to understand that 
when more verbiage is involved, the likelihood of errors increases. Additionally, at a 
busy airport, the primary asset of a busy controller is frequency time and anything that 
safely reduces time spent on the frequency by both the controller and the pilot is 
beneficial to the operation. We choose to increase safety, while they choose to do 
nothing. 
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DTW staff has not developed a procedure to ensure all departing aircraft, including those 
traveling to the airports in Ohio at issue, receive SID's utilizing the electronic 
communication system as stated in the findings. Furthermore, management states that I 
have reviewed and expressed satisfaction with the proposed procedure. I have no idea 
what they are talking about. 

Ms. Bynum and Mr. Bazman are the two individuals that I have had contact with over the 
SID's issue. At one point Ms. Bynum had a DTW Air Traffic Assistant, Richard 
Sheridan, removed from the schedule to address our SID's issue. Mr. Sheridan modified 
the SID's for better efficiency and addressed our concerns. This document was passed 
back and forth between Mr. Bazman and Ms. Bynum for more than 18 months. During 
the time when the ball was in Mr. Bazman's court and approximately two months ago, 
Mr. Sheridan and I met with him to discuss the progress. 

Mr. Bazman had specific questions about what we wanted to accomplish. Every question 
Mr. Bazman asked was already answered in the document Mr. Sheridan created. It was 
more than apparent that Mr. Bazman had never read or even looked at what Mr. Sheridan 
had given him. When I approached Ms. Bynum over where we were at with the SID's, 
she spoke in generalities about orders, the enroute center and the paper worked involved 
while never answering my questions. These types of talking in circle exchanges have 
been going on for more than 18 months with Mr. Bazman and Ms. Bynum and not a thing 
has been accomplished. 

The issue with the routes to certain airports is easily addressed with simple added 
verbiage to the SID's. Words to the effect of, "If route not on SID, then expect radar 
vectors first fix", then we are able to issue the SID either via radio or electronic 
communication system cutting down on excessive verbiage and possible errors. 

In closing, the overall performance, actions and conduct by the management team at 
DTW is inadequate, ineffective and unacceptable. The examples and documentation I 
offered as supporting evidence not associated with my allegations are only a few 
instances of poor managerial performance and activity. I believe this can be directly 
attributed to incompetent leadership and the lack of air traffic knowledge, experience and 
competency. 

Thank you very much for your time and the opportunity to review, evaluate and comment 
on the report. If you any questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

VincentM. Sugent 
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Au4it'~ ~ Runways and NOnl:i:l1erseding RW1ways 

The Air Tratfic Safe#}' OversigbJ.Servf.c" (,AOV) roJlducted .ap audit of the. Air Ttaffic 
Orwmi~on (ATO.) 10 dctetmine cam.plia:no: with FAA orders and. separation staDdards ,. 
utilizing ~ T.mlwa:ys Qlll'Onin~@ omways..,-hose ffilJbt ~s ~ 

AOV audited S oflh~· J 7 Opetational Evolution Pwtnersbip (ORP) ~~.int~ : 
1'UZlway,lfiigbt~~ l1b! audit team fo.;nsed ott three specifae·meu: ~na; I 
procedural'and tmining as it peltains to the requirements ofimersectrnc and. ~1i I!} 

runways. ~ I 
Ao a mMt 'oftlds audit. a speoific ~ty (lOJilptiance issue was. id.emitierl. The following: !dirtY 
complim1ee'.!ssue win be :resoJycd th.rou.sh the AOV Compliance Pro~.in acQlrdance wi ~ FAA 
OrderilJO()..~ Air T:ra.:ffi.c SUety O\rersighl Compliance PrOQe$S. This issue IeiiulteS a fo; pnal 
response withiA: 1.0 wo$ing days.from:reeeipt of1h:i! m<:ni()l'tmdmn.. The formal IC$pOnse; tbould 
inclwte a -ccmprehensive phm oil how ATO VIIilI address·1his issue. 

(1) Compliance Issue Nwn.ber COMP-PY07-:01: 
-

Ou ~~ 14. ~. the aUdit ream fo\Ind~it AiIpcrrt Traffic ComroI Tower (01.; ~ tt> 'he 
OOJlCOmpi.Umt Wlfu FAA Order 11 HI-tiS. AIrframe Control,. p~ 3-9-1 and (bk rhioo 
.reqUires 'to se;arate a ~ airctaft 1i'om 'an aircraft using an in1el'SeCting Rmway Ii f 
n.oa~ runways when the. flight ~s. in~ by ellSW'iI.lg that ~anivaI ai~ !:raft is 
clear of t~ landing runway, eompleted the tandiDi roU, and wH1 heJd shQxt of ~ inta btiQo. 
~ed me: intersection, or bas crossed over the departure run~ay'. This issue was br-icl [~d to the 
fl':l:Oility $.ir:iGg the audit and .reported to ATC Safety OJ] August 29.2001. -

Specific.aUy,at-DW, the audit team observed that mraft A was departing eJle.rtmwaj whiff: 
aircraft .B.. was c~ the landirJg tfu?eshoi.d of a.nonintersecting ruDway that cro~d" ~~aft 
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path. were to B (ihe: ~ 1 )I 

~.~ftool.aUt;nm A. IHs important_ttl nom: _ nrrw does not use-Land 
. -. Sho£f~. AJail the ~ ~ ~ directtlle DTW 111 ;: !tted 

IJ'.U ~r_\ ,. whidl ~ N1'1'i!vay3 21L and 2 i R operation. an~ found tha it does 
~ mat 1his ~iQn ml.t!:'1 be tu;ed d~deu.tiy .. nor does it give specific 

h ~ landings. . \C} 

fol~ audit ~ have been,ii!entffied and l10ted iii the and.it report. Th.esc fim; mg,s 
be ~ked and reso~ved tbrouJb the AOV Audit ~ and reqtdre a~ from AT!' by 
No~ 2001. 

·E9CUS~~ PmcWP 

fifty -pen;ent of~ facilities that I.ttilize Land and Hold Short' Ope.."ations- (tAli'S » did 
not.meet the ru.u tequil"emems uf FAA Order 71 B).il S. Land. and H-old Shott Opcr. tons. 
"fbte: ~ia.nt facititi&s did not have & letter of ~t with the ose1' si;na:1:OI ies nor 
ii:id they ba~e 8: list.readily avaUabk tel controUers. 

(.1) Fo.rty_~oftb:e audit~ilities' did not indk:ate specific briefinlitems wen: dot ie 
veibtdly as tequit-ed by FAA oroer 1210.3, Facility Opmttio~ and ~iqn. fb~ 
noncompliant faoili'ties-~ an electronic mail from their sc.rric:e unit pro-vtmn : an. 
m.~io~ that is. in ~tradicts to FAA ()r(tw 7210.3 P.aragraph .2-2-11 ~b ~ in 
pm that '''shall ensure tbat lBcifity air traffi..-:~! are verbally briefed on ch~ ::$"', 

The interpretation eKp1ained that -only major cbqes to the Orders needed to be veri aUy 
briefed.. 'I'be ~ west on to darii;y that auy ooticc' "battges., dis~ !I. ... 
Getler&l NQtiees (OENOTS). as wen as .other Changes to procedund directives did nI t have 
to 8e ver~ briefed. 
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Memorandum 

Date: October 18, 2007 

To: All DTW 1021 Personnel 

From: 
~--

Operations Manger 

Subject: Southwest Flow RY27IJRY21R 

R&I 
PRE-OUlY 

CURING SHIFT 

GIS 
Remove on 

Originator 
CQpiesto 

ATO Safety conducted a follow up evaluation regarding the Towers performance in regards to the 
Southwest Flow Operation . 

On both Monday and Tuesday the controllers were operating within the guidelines as briefed after the 
August evaluation. 

On Wednesday it was a different story as the two jndividuals that were observed did not follow the intent 
of hitting the gaps as briefed. 

The dedsk>n has been made to temporarily suspend using the southwest now until this can be corrected. 
We are looking at areas of training and proficiency that may be used to get everyone operating in the 
same way. 

This does not preclude using a west flow straight 27 arrivals and departing 22R that is still available as 
needed. 



Great Lakes 
2300 E. Devon U,S. Department 

of Transportation Des Plaines, IL 60018 

Federal Aviation 
Administration 

SEP 132007 

Detroit, MI. 48226 

Dear Senator 

1 

This is in response to your letter of August 7, 2007, on behalf of your constituent, 
NIr. Vincent Sugent, regarding air traffic procedures utilized at the Detroit 
Airport (DTW1. 

3! 

The proceduret<:}.which Mr. Sugent is referring is our "Southwest Configuration." This 
entails landing runways 22Rand 27L, and departing 22L and 21R. The flight paths, not 
nmways, that intersect are 21R and 27L, (21R departures fly over 27L as they are climbing 
out), Which is why we have to "hit gaps" with departures off21R. The reason for this is, 
in the event of a missed approach off 27L, the aircraft will be adequately separated. 

In addition, we have certain weather minimums, 4 miles visibility and 2,000 feet, when 
operating this configuration, to ensure visual contact will always be maintained between 
controllers and aircraft, and pilots and other aircraft, if there were a missed approach. 
There is adequate time and distance to take action in the event of a missed approach, 
because of the distance between our runways and overall airport layout. 

It should be noted also that we have had personnel from the office of Air Traffic Safety 
Oversight Service (AOV) visit the facility to observe this particular operation. 
not find this operation to be unsafe. 

The airlines are also in support of this operation, as it provides another alternative, which 
enhances safety and capacity during the ongoing construction, and lengthy runway closures 
DTW encounters. 



We trust concerns. you or 
~""rv,.n''''' Bloomingbird, Manager 

Enclosure 

cc: Washington Office 





1. FAAO 7210.56C, paragraph 5-1-1 an operational deviation is: 

d. Operational Deviation (OD). An 
occurrence attributable to an element of the air traffic 
system which did not result in an Operational Error (OE) 
as defined in this Notice, but: 
(l) Less than the applicable separation 
minima existed between an aircraft and adjacent airspace 
without prior approval; or 
(2) An aircraft penetrated airspace that was 
delegated to another position of operation or another 
facility without prior coordination and approval; or 
(3) An aircraft penetrated airspace that was 
delegated to another position of operation or another 
facility at an altitude or route contrary to the altitude or 
route requested and approved in direct coordination or as 
specified in a letter of agreement (LOA), precoordination, 
or internal procedure; or 
(4) An aircraft is either positioned and/or 
routed contrary to that which was coordinated 
individually or; as specified in a LOA/directive between 
positions of operation in either the same or a different 
facility; or 
NOTEThis 
does not apply to inter/intra-jacility traffic 
management initiatives. 
(5) An aircraft, vehicle, equipment, or 
personnel encroached upon a landing area that was 
delegated to another position of operation without prior 
coordination and approval. 

2. Per the same order, an operational error is: 

e. Operational Error (OE). An occurrence 
attributable to an element of the air traffic system in 
which: 
(1) Less than 90% of the applicable 
separation minima results between two or more airborne 
aircraft, or less than the applicable separation minima 
results between an aircraft and terrain or obstacles (e.g., 
operations below minimum vectoring altitude (MY A); 
aircraft! equipment / personnel on runways), as required 
by FAA Order 7110.65 or other national directive; or 
(2) An aircraft lands or departs on a 
runway closed to aircraft operations after receiving air 
traffic authorization, or 



(3) An aircraft lands or departs on a 
runway closed to aircraft operations, at an uncontrolled 
airport and it was deterniined that a NOTAM regarding 
the runway closure was not issued to the pilot as 
required. 
f. Performance. Human conduct including 
actions (or inactions) leading to, during, and after an 
OEJPE/OD. 
g. Preliminary Report. Refers to FAA Form 
7210-2, "Preliminary Operational Error/Deviation 
Report." 
h. Proximity Event. A loss of separation 
minima between two aircraft where 90 percent or greater 
separation is maintained in either the horizontal or 
vertical plane. This does not include any violation of 
wake turbulence separation minima or losses of 
separation that are classified under the No Conformance 
minima. 

3. Independent and dependent operations - According to Chuck Chamberlain of A TO-T, there 
are no written definitions of these terms available. 





National Air Traffic Controllers Association 
Detroit Metro TOlver 

Building 801 
® Detroit, MI 48242 

Office: (734) 955-5164 
FAX: (734) 955-5164 

DATE: June 22, 2003 

SUBJECT: Unsafe arrival/departure configuration 

TO: Joseph Figliuolo 

FROM: Lewis M. Bird 

NATCA is evoking the provisions of Article 65, Section 1 of the 

Collective Bargaining Agreement for all Bargaining Unit Members at 

Detroit Metro Tower in reference to the following: When runway 21L is 

closed, management has chosen to depart from runways 21 R and 22L 

while arriving runways 22R and 271. Due to the lack of ability to 

properly ensure departure separation minima (710.65N 3-10-4), wake 

turbulence minima in the event of a go-around (711 0.65N 3-9-8), and the 

overall complexity and lack of a procedure for a runway 27L go-around; 

this declaration shall apply. NATCA believes a safer operation during 

this runway closure is to land runways 22L122R. 

Lewis M. Bird Joseph Figliuolo 

AATM 

® 



Response to Proposed Discipline to David Thomson 

Received ~'~)-{;fJ] 
.-L~~~ __________ ~ 



1 2003, County closed runway At some point during next 2 
days, a decision was made by the FAA to operate with inbound aircraft landing runways 
22R and 27L, while departing runways 22L and 21R. Taxiway closures added to the 
complexity, since runway 21L and the parallel, taxiway W were both closed, the first 
available turnoff for aircraft landing runway 27L was more than three quarter way down 
the runway. This is an abnormal operation at DTW, and brought about a series of 
questions that went unanswered for 10 days. The legality of the operation involving 
departing runway 21R and over flying runway 27L, while inbound traffic was present 
was in question. The legality of departing wake-turbulence producing aircraft across 
runway 27L, or across the missed approach course for runway 27L was also in question. 
What instructions to give a missed approach would be legal (much less safe) were never 
answered. The instructions we had been given were to, "depart from runway 21R in the 
gap between arrivals on runway 27L." Some controllers chose to ask a supervisor what 
the rule was, others didn't, assuming they understood the rules and were comfortable with 
it. For the first time in a long time, people read, discussed and debated what was 
contained in the 7110.65 routinely for an entire operation (normally this is done only in 
the case of an abnormal event). 

The acting NATCA DTW facility rep. determined that there was a greater than normal 
chance for potential error, and based on the lack of guidance from the FAA, filed an 
Article 65 statement covering the operation on 06/2112003. At this time the acting 
NATCA DTW facility Rep. asked management to interpret the rules, and issue guidelines 
as to how we were to operate legally in this environment. Although management 
received guidance from the region on June 25, it was not passed in any kind of written 
form, or briefing to the controllers. The acting NATCA DTW facility rep. met with 
management after their briefing, and attempted to "pass the word," but even after 
requesting the clarification be published on the June 27, management refused, saying 
only, "by the time we could get the information printed and put in the read binders, the 
other runway would be open and it wouldn't be a factor." (See attachment # 1). 

The "normal" 27LIR operation at DTW involves strong winds from the West, resulting in 
slow ground speeds for inbound traffic. Traffic departs from runways 27L127R, or 
runway 22R, which is about a half mile west of runway 22L, and in this configuration, 
most departures turn away from runway 27L. The rules applied in this scenario are 
straightforward and understood by all controllers. The distance between the departure 
ends of runway 27L and 22R is great enough to afford time to coordinate in the event of a 
missed approach. 

In this unique operation, runway 27L inbound traffic had a crosswind, or tail wind 
resulting in much faster ground speed, and greatly reduced time between arrivals. The 
opportunity for a missed approach, or go-around mixing with traffic departing 21 R and 

. 22L was on everyone's mind. In the event of a missed approac~ there might have been 
no time to coordinate what to do, and the potential for three controllers turning their 
traffic, on three different frequencies, aU at each other was there. The fact that there were 
three or four local controllers potentially unaware of the rules were working the traffic 



added to the complexity, and the stress level. Two or three controllers working parallel 
runways is the norm at DTW. The potential for something bad to happen in the event of 
a sudden go-around or missed approach was greatly increased. The published missed 
approach for runway 27L involves climbing, THEN turning southbound. This missed 
approach passes directly off the end of runways 21 Rand 22L. 

When Mr. Thomson came to work on June 17 and discovered the operation he would be 
working. He mentioned to Mrs. Thompson and separately to Mr. Williams his 
recollection of what happened the last time he witnessed this operation. An Airbus on 
approach to runway 27L had executed a missed approach, and flown directly through the 
wake of a B747 that had departed runway 22L. Mr. Thomson informed them that the 
FAA, at the regional level, had issued an order to DTW to stop the operation based on the 
danger ofthis happening again. Mr. Thomson pulled the pages of the 7110.65 that he 
thought applied to this, made copies and gave them to Mark Williams, the DIS and 
explained what had happened. Mr. Williams stated to Mr. Thomson that he might have 
something here in reference to the legality of the operation. (See attachment #17). 
On the day in question, prior to attending the standup meeting, Mr. Williams assigned 
Mr. Thompson the LNW position. At about the same time, Mr. Williams showed Steve 
Schrimscher, an experienced controller with more than 15 years at DTW tower, working 
the ground southwest position, a copy of some pages from the 7110.65 (presumably the 
ones Mr. Thomson had provided him). Mr. Williams requested Mr. Schrimscher review 
the rules shown, and asked his opinion. Mr. Williams told Mr. Schrimscher that he 
wanted his opinion "quietly, so Dave (Mr. Thomson) won't hear." Mr. Schrimscher 
informed Mr. Williams that after reviewing the pages, he was of the opinion that the 
current operation was in a gray area, and could be determined more than one way. He 
continued that he could see an argument on either side of the debate, both supporting the 
legality of it, and supporting the illegal nature of what we had been instructed to do. Mr. 
Schrimscher left Mr. Williams with the comment of, "I can see how this could be 
interpreted both ways." Mr. Schrimscher added that the definition of flight path was not 
clear enough to know if it ended at the end of the runway, on the runway or continued 
past the runway. Mr. Schrimscher told Mr. Williams that the flight path of an inbound 
ended at the end of the runway. Not only did MA not respond with what the correct 
procedure was, he responded that he had a phone conversation with someone at ORD and 
got the answer. That person told him, "That's why towers have windows," and the 
conversation ended. (See attachment #2). 

Mr. Williams then attended the 2:45pm standup meeting with management from the 
TRACON, the Tower and the Traffic Management Unit, when he was informed that 
DTW would be operating the 27L122R arrival, 21R122L departure "plan". Mr. Williams 
knew from previous discussions that Mr. Thomson thought that the operation was illegal, 
and that he was working LNW, a position impacted by this abnormal operation. Mr. 
Williams informed the people at the stand up that he had employees that didn't want to do 
the operation, and inquired if the AATM would back him ifhe ordered them to do it 
(See attachment # 10). The response was in the affirmative. Mr. Williams did not 
mention that he knew it was Mr. Thomson, and he knew what Mr. Thomson's apparent 
misunderstanding of the rules were. 



at 3:45pm local time, Mr. Thomson was still working local northwest. His 
duties included runway 22R (the primary landing runway, due to the gaps needed on 
runway 27L), and runway 22L, the primary departure runway. Mr. Thomson noticed a 
B757 taxiing in line to depart, and also noticed that the runway 27L arrivals were spaced 
about five miles apart. Mr. Thomson, realizing the cab coordinator position was not 
staffed, requested that Mr. Williams contact the TRACON and provide a two-minute gap 
between arrivals on runway 27L. Mr. Thomson was operating under the understanding 
that the operation required a two minute gap between arrivals to safely/legally depart a 
wake-turbulence producing airplane. Mr. Williams responded with, "roger." A few 
minutes later, Mr. Williams approached Mr. Thomson (while he was working, in Mr. 
Williams terms, a moderate to heavy inbound/outbound rush), and asked him what he 
wanted again, and why. Mr. Thomson explained that he needed a two-minute gap in the 
arrivals on runway 27L so he could depart a B757, and now a B747, and told him he 
thought he could get them both out in the same gap, if it was big enough. Mr. Williams 
again walked away, and it's unclear if he again said, "roger," or not, as Mr. Thomson was 
obviously very busy (See attachment #16). Mr. Williams then assigned Brian Vax the 
cab coordinator position, made a phone call (apparently to Joe Figliuolo). The context of 
the call is unclear, since Mr. Williams cupped his hand over the mouthpiece in an attempt 
to conceal what he was saying (See attachment #7). Later, Mr. Figliuolo verified that he 
had talked on the phone at some point with Mr. Williams; Mr. Williams told him that 
someone working local was not following instructions. Mr. Williams asked if he would 
be supported in his effort to make the local controller operate in a manner that he saw fit. 
Mr. Figliuolo answered in the affirmative. 

Mr. Williams then instructed Mr. Yax, now working the cab-coordinator position to, 
"come here, you need to witness this." Mr. Vax wasn't sure what was going on, since he 
had just entered the cab moment's prior, but he followed him nonetheless. Mr. Williams 
then approached Mr. Thomson, positioned his body between Mr. Thomson and his 
traffic, because Mr. Thomson was too busy working to give Mr. Williams the attention he 
thought he deserVed while he was working this busy rush, and instructed him to do 
something. It is not totally clear what that instruction was, since Mr. Thomson was busy 
working heavy traffic, (See attachment # 14), Mr. Yax had figured out it was a dispute 
and did not want to be involved, but there does not seem to be any dispute that Mr. 
Williams had ordered Mr. Thomson to somehow depart the B757. Mr. Williams didn't 
take the time to ask Mr. Thomson what his level of complexity was at the time, and was 
not monitoring the position. Mr. Williams did not appear to give a specific instruction 
(there are several accounts of what was said), but Mr. Williams did apparently expect 
immediate compliance. Mr. Thomson, between transmitting to airplanes, scanning the 
runways, his flight progress strips, and the D-Brite, attempted to comprehend just what it 
was Mr. Williams was instructing him to do. It had become apparent to Mr. Thomson at 
this point that Mr. Williams was not going to coordinate the requested two-minute gap 
between arrivals on runway 27L. The B757 had been taxied to an area several hundred 
yards from the approach end of the runway, there was a lengthy line of departures and 
both finals were "full. II Mr. WilHams then instructed Mr. Thomson a second time, again 
without regard to the heavy traffic Mr. Thomson was working, the potential for aircraft or 



controllers to be talking in Mr. Thomson's other ear, and claims that with the second set 
instructions he included the phrase, "Listen very close to what I'm about to tell you. It 

Mr. Thomson, due to his level of working complexity and his requirement to, "ensure the 
safe and expeditious movement of aircraft,"(711 0.65) asked Mr. Williams what he 
expected of him. Both exchanges are murky at best, but it appears Mr. Williams had in 
mind a specific instruction to order Mr. Thomson to do something with the B757. Mr. 
Thomson apparently was not able to underst~nd or comply with the order in a fashion 
that Mr. Williams thought was appropriate, and he had Paul Borys, who had been 
standing in the back of the tower, relieve Mr. Thomson of his duties. After the exchange 
between Mr. Thomson and Mr. Williams, Mr. Thomson had moved the aircraft in 
question up to the runway and into position and hold. Mr. Borys relieved Mr. Thomson, 
then he departed the B757 in question with the first transmission he made. (Reference 
the tape of the position.) 

Mr. Williams showed no concern about the operation, the controllers working a 
"moderate to heavy rush", the user or even safety. Ifhe were concerned about safety or a 
delay to the airplane, he would have relieved Mr. Thomson and counseled him off 
position as he did with Mr. Wheatley and Mr. Elya who were involved in a similar 
scenario involving the application of rules and an operation. (See attachments #2 and 12). 
Mr. Thomson was working moderate to heavy traffic as Mr. Williams stated, and he was 
put in an undesirable situation while working this traffic, having to continue his work 
while trying to understand Mr. Williams' statements. (See attachment #14) Mr. 
Williams knew that there was potential for misunderstanding from Mr. Thomson due to 
the discussion they had days prior to the incident. (See attachment #15). Further, 
management was notified the day after the incident by AGL that the operation in question 
was clarified. (See attachment # 1). Even after the clarification from the region and 
knowing the controversy and confusion surrounding the operation, they would not put out 
any sort of face-to-face briefing, something in the R & I or even a briefing guide. (See 
attachment #1). Mr. Williams, knowing Mr. Thomson's and at least one other controllers 
feelings on the rules and operation, (See attachments #2, 7, 8 and 15), still would not 
clarify the rules with Mr. Thomson. In fact he kept the fact that it was clarified to him 
from either Joe Figliuolo or other management personnel, (See attachment #10), from 
Mr. Thomson when he spoke to Steve Schrlmscher after he came from the stand up. (See 
attachment #2). Mr. Williams stated that the operation was not against the any rule in the 
7110. (See attachment #14). If management knew it was legal before this incident, why 
were the controllers not told, especially the ones that had concerns and questions? If it 
was legal the entire time, then why the need for the clarification? If Mr. Williams was 
concerned about the operation, the user or creating an environment that supports and 
encourages the contributions of all employees and create and maintain a positive and 
supportive work environment that promotes participation by aU employees in work 
activities for the benefit of the individual and the organization as stated in the Managerial 
and Supervisory Roles and Responsibilities in the Model Work Environment Action Plan, 
he would have never put Mr. Thomson on LNW knowing his feelings on the operation 
and knowing there was clarification out there that could have avoided the incident. If Mr. 
Williams was concerned about the operation or the user, then after NIT. Thomson showed 
some confusion and concerns about the operation, knowing there was clarity from the 



DTW management, Mr. Thomson should have been relieved by Mr. Borys who was in 
the back of the tower awaiting assignment. Mr. Thomson should have been warranted 
the same treatment as Mr. Elya and Mr. Wheatley. He was not. Instead he made a phone 
call to Joe Figliuolo (See attachment #7), not about the operation, not about a controller 
who had legitimate concerns and questions, but about a controller not following an order 
quickly enough. A controller who asked for clarification during the incident and a 
bargaining unit who did prior to and after the incident but did not receive it. Mr. 
Williams ask the Cab Coordinator to come over to LNW; he needed him to witness 
something. First he was unnecessarily distracting to Mr. Thomson working traffic during 
a moderate to heavy session and now pulling the Cab Coordinator away from his duties 
during the same session. The time Mr. Williams spent making the phone call and getting 
the Cab Coordinator to witness the incident he could have had Dave relieved and given 
him the same treatment as Mr. Elya and Mr. Wheatley. Mr. Williams said he stated that 
failure to comply with this order, for the second time, could lead to disciplinary action. 
(See attachments #14). No one else in the tower cab heard Mr. Williams make this 
statement. (See attachments #7, 8, 9 and 15). While in fact Mr. Thomson had moved the 
aircraft into position and hold while the exchange took place because that was Mr. Borys 
first transmission. (On tape). Mr. Thomson could not depart the aircraft as Mr. Williams 
instructed but had sequenced the aircraft onto the runway. He was unable to depart the 
aircraft because he had already been relieved. Mr. Williams had questions and was just 
as confused about the rules even after the clarification from the DTW Management team. 
If he were clear he would have not had to have talked to someone at ORD tower or ask 
controllers in the tower before and after the incident. (See attachments #2, 7, 8, and 9). 
Similar situations since the incident on the 24th of June involving the following of orders 
have happened. Angela Thompson ordered Dan Ricks to send an aircraft around twice 
and he did not follow the order. Mr. Ricks was not removed from position or any 
disciplinary action proposed. (See attachments #2and 13). Another was when Ms. 
Thompson ordered Bernie Campau to cancel an aircrafts take off clearance. (See 
attachments #3, 4 and 18). She believed that he did not follow her order and pulled him 
off position and spoke to him about the situation. (See attachment #3). Both of these 
scenarios involve safety to the user, and management's impression that rules were being 
violated. Mr. Thomson was never accused of violating a rule; simply using caution when 
presented with what he thought was a dangerous situation and a rule violation. These 
situations, along with the situation ofthe proposed discipline, show the failure to punish 
and correct in a fair and equitable manner. It also, with the above aforementioned, shows 
the proposed disciplinary action is arbitrary, capricious and unwarranted. 

Mr. Williams' conduct, not Mr. Thomson's, was disruptive as it was in the past. (See 
attachments #5, 6 and 11). Mr. Williams' said that Mr. Thomson immediately became a 
distraction and was argumentative to the point that he had to be relieved. (See attachment 
# 17). Mr. Williams also said that he noticed that the LNE and GNE controllers were 
distracted from their duties as a result of Mr. Thomson. (See attachment # 17). Other 
controllers in the tower said that Mr. Thomson's actions were not a distraction let alone 
disruptive and unprofessional. (See attachment # 7). Others said that both were loud and 
disruptive. They also stated that the discussion was no different than other conversations 
in the tower. (See attachments # 7,8 and 9). The punishment being proposed is 



arbitrary, capricious totally unfounded. Mr. Williams' conduct was much more 
disruptive unprofessional earlier in the year, (See attachments #5,6 and 1 and 
went unpunished. This disparity in treatment between the non-action towards Mr. 
Williams and the proposed action towards Mr. Thomson fails to meets the requirements 
of being fair and equitable. The action that should have been taken was to resolve the 
misunderstanding Mr. Thomson had with the rules and go about business as usual. Any 
type of briefing by upper management prior to the event would also have prevented the 
entire scenario. The second event seems to be "piling on," since the other people in the 
tower did not think Mr. Thomson's actions were out of the norm. Mr. Thomson should 
not be disciplined for reacting to Mr. Williams' unprofessional actions in a manner that at 
worst erred on the side of safety. 

David Thomson 



On or about the i h of July, I had a discussion with Joe Figliuolo about Mark Williams' 
understanding of the rules and operation of the Ry 27L, 22L, 22R and 21R operation. I 
asked him, "If Mark was clear on the rules of the operation, why did he ask people before 
and after the incident if they thought the operation was legal." Joe said that on or prior to 
June 24, 2003, he or someone else had spoken to Mark and there was no confusion and 
Mark was clear on the legalities. 
I then asked Joe if Mark stated at the stand up, on June 24 that he had people in the tower 
that were unwilling to run the operation. Joe said yes. I then asked Joe what he said to 
Mark. Joe said, words to the effect of, that he would back or support him on what he 
needed to do to run the operation. 
I then asked Joe if Mark called and him and stated that the local controller would not 
follow his orders and depart certain aircraft and that you said back to him to order him to 
do it and get a witness. Joe said no, and then words to the effect of, I did not tell him to 
get a witness but I did say do what you have to do and I will back you. 
Joe did not indicate that any effort was put forth to ascertain who or why there was a 
problem or how management planned to address this known concern. 

Vincent Sugent 



On June 25, 2003, I went into the TRACON sup's office to meet with AU, finding that 
the afternoon stand-up had just ended. Earl Grand, Joe Fig, Paul Saterwhite were all 
there and Dan informed me that they had just been informed by the AGL that the 
operation involving departing traffic from rwys 22L121R while landing runway 27L was 
in fact legal. They also told me that the person that informed them of this stated that the 
legal operation was to depart runway 21R after a runway 27L departure "had landed", 
and any successive departures needed to be clear of the runway prior to the next arrival 
passing over the runway 27L landing threshold. I was informed that there was no wake 
turbulance issue, since the inbound aircraft's rout of flight ended at the runway, and go­
around traffic was to be treated the same as a go-around on a single runway, when a 
heavy departs and the inbound goes around. The event of a go around is treated as an 
abnormality of flight, and the resulting wake trubulance the aircraft might experience 
from traffic departing the other two runways was not an issue for A TC to worry about. 
The operation is legal and if someone complains about flying through the wake of a 
heavy or B757, I was assured there would be no controller held responsible for this loss 
of wake turbulance separation. As the acting NATCA DTW president, I took this 
information to be good news, and was relieved that after nine days of operating this way 
we finally had guidelines to follow. I assumed that the information would be forwarded 
in some manner to the controller workforce. On June 26, I arrived to find it hadn't been 
disseminated, I asked AU why. He informed me that to generate such a breifing would 
take more time than the planned opening of runway 21L(June 30) allowed, and it 
wouldn't be a factor after that. 
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PRE-DUTY 

Di1te: December 20. 2005 OURIN~ SJiSFT '7-:UI..N" 

FtIlm: Air Traffic \-1allager, DTW ATCT 
GIS 

Remove on l I d <0 10k 
To: AU Operational Personnel Orlgl~ 

Suhjcct: Performance and (' olldm:t 
CopllMto 

Detroit T'vletm Tcmer and TRACON have experienced a troubling increase in Operali(1llal Errors, h)r FY 
2U/)), Ihe Tower had 1\\0 OF's Ihal \\';:1'c both dassified as Category AlB. and the TRACON had H OF's 
of\\!lich eight were Category A/B. For the calendar ;.'car 2005. the Tower has bad six UF's ofwhkh intlr 
,\ere Categol")' A/[L and (ile TRACOl\ has had J 7 DE's of which I n were AlB's. 

Tile tlI{1St disturbing nspect about the IlH~iority or these errors is that \/olumc \Vas not a prilllary faclor ill 
the cYent, These \\ cre directly caused by a lack or plann jng, poor priorities, inac! iOIl, inattention and 
downright sloppiness, Dcspjl~ reminders to avoid practices kno\vn III cause OE's, to perform pn.lpcr 
position rcliefhridings, 10 lise proper phraseol(1gy and interphone C01111l1Unicaliolls, to properly 
\:uordinatc the usc or airspace and to make efficient use ofyenical separation. there are contrnlh:rs ,\ hll 
willfully continne illthdr had habits. Sloppy alld lIonchalallt controlling cannot and wilillot be toierawd. 
I Juman crrm aside. coniinued disregard for rules, regulations and established pwtocols can 110 longer be 
!l Cit ted as pOt1r performance. III events where sloppy con troll ing or illattelltion to duty is the predol11 i n<lllt 
casual faeillL tbe condnct or the responsible individual(s) must be called intn question. 

Ifynu, as all hOliest and cOllscientiou;:; prof(essiollal ami team member. are working beside someone who is 
Ilaving problems wilh the operatioll. plcnse assist as yOll call a1Jd get a supen'isor involved. If you are a 
sllpenisllf ami ore 1I0t act i vely engf1ged ill correcling poor performance and bad habits, )- Oil ale Ilegl i gent 
in ~(Jur duties and resp(lnsibilitics. IfYOll are an Operations Mallager and an: looking lhe other way \\hen 
<;up~ni~ors ,h' not 1llake <lppropriate Oll the spot corrections or do !lot e/Tcclively manage their n:sourccs. 
(iJel1 :--Oll t('(l are negligent in your duties al\d responsibilities. 

1(1 those orynu who exercise good operating practices and tedmiques, this memo i5 not addressed to you. 
Yuur nne record speaks ror itself' and I thallk you for your continued gDod \\ork. Hmvc\-er, to those of 
YOU wIll) choose tu conlinuoHsly take arbitrary short cuts and use your (1\\11 mcthods \'('rsus those 
prescribed hy FAAU 7110.65, Air Traffic Control, orthose mandated by SOP's. LOA's and directin~", 
the ('~g.an intloll ClUlIwt afford til tolerate your bdHrvlor. ----Jg 
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August 5, 2008 

Nancy Kert 
Director'Sentr~T:.~1 Operations 
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Joseph Figliuolo III 
Air Traffic Manager. Detroit Metro Tower 

Earl H. Grand 

Request for Reclassification of DTW -T -08-E-002/003/004 

Reclassification Reason and Comments 

The events in question occurred on July 21. 2008, and three Preliminary Operationaj Error 
reports were filed on the three occurrences. 

All three events pertained to a Heavy B747 departing Runway 22L at DTW whik landings were 
being made on Runway 27L More specit"'ically, either the B747 had not flew across the extended 
centerline of Runway 27L prior to the arrival being over the Runway 27L threshold. or the 
arrivals on Run\:vay 27L had not exited the runway prior to the B747 commencing takeoffroH on 
Runway 221. 

These were reported as Operational Errors based on a verbal interpretation from an AOV 
employee during an investigatory visit at DTW back in March 2008. 

Upon reviev,.'mg applicable paragraphs contained in FAA Order 7110.65, the facility does not 
believe that any regulations vvere violated. We also contacted several other busy facilities that 
have similar. ifnot identical rumvay configurations, and all were IUlming the arrivai/departures 
independently. Runway 22L departures do NOT overfly Rumvay 27L. 

Subsequently, ATO TerminaL follm.ving discussions with AOV. determined that the events were 
not to be considered Operational Errors or Operational Deviations. 

Therefore. the three Operational Errors require reclassification to non-events. 
If you have any questions or desire additional clarifications of the explanations stated above. 
please contact Earl Grand, Support Manager for Quality Asstrrance, at 734-955-5005 . 



Federal Aviation 
Administration 

Memorandum 
Date: September 1 I. 2008 

To: DTW NA TCA Representative 

From: Acting Staff Manager, D21 IDTW A rCT 

Subject: Response to NATCA DTW Information Request 5-08 Dated Septem ber 8.2008 

This is in response to NA TCA DTW information request No. 6-08, dated September 8,2008, made 
pursuant to the parties ' contract and 5 USC 7114 (b) (4). The Union requests the following info rmation 
from the facility: 

"Any and alt information pertaining and relating to DTW~T-08-E-002/003!004. This information should 
include, but not limited to, emaiis, text messages, managerial notes, and the Friday Bulletin." 

The information request fails to state why NATCA Local DTW needs this intormation. Nevertheless, a 
review of the record of events indicates that one bargaining unit employee who was on local control at the 
time and was identitied by investigators as a contributor. Therefore, a copy of the report package for each 
error is enclosed with this response. 

As you will see in the enclosed report, a non-bargaining unit employee was identified as primarily 
responsible by agency investigators for directing subordinate controllers to use a prohibited operational 
configuration. Administrative action was taken. 

Presently, the occurrences are class ified as operational errors. However, the facility has requested that 
Central Service Area reclassifY them as nonevents based upon the findings of A TO-S and AOV. 

No references to these errors were made in any Friday Bulletin and, therefore, none have been included. 

Finally, a review of other requested documents pertinent to this case that are maintained in the facility's 
system of records has been conducted. As these documents do not include information conceming the 
bargaining unit employee represented by NATCA DTW, they have not been provided. IfNATCA DTW 
seeks the release of these documents, it will need to provide management with a statement as to 
purpose(s) for which it requires this information and how the stated purpose(s) relate to the union's role 
as the exclusive representative of the bargaining unit. 
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Prepared by: 

Subjet:t 

R,D, Engelke. \la!lag~r. Tt:nlllnal Qualit v Assur;lIK'e - - . 

Mary Br~HJley 

Operatiunal Error Rcdibsifiealion Requesl: DT\\ ·T,oo·E002/003l004 
(o712110H) 

We bave reviewed the documentation and justific:.Hioll suhmined hy the Central 
Tenninul Service Area to support its request to reclassify operational enor numbers 
"DTW-T-08-£·002iOOJIO04.'· We concur with the Service Area Direclor's decision to 
approve the fal'ility's request Our rc;.:ords have been ch~mged to "how the event as J 

non -OCCti ITC n CC. 

rr you have uny questions regard ing thi"i llluttt'Lpkase contact !\lary Slra\vbridge. Manager. 
Safety Investigalions, at (2(1) 3:-;5 · .. 1-720. 
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Administration 

emorandum 

Date: October 6, 2008 

To: DTW NATCA Representative 

From: Acting Staff Manager, TCL-DTW 

Subject: Response to DTW NATCA Information Request 7-08 

This is in response to NA TCA DTW's information request dated and received September! 8,2008. This 
information request identified by NATCA DTW as 7-08, contained six items: 

l. A list of any and all AOV, ATO-Terminal and ATO-S individuals contacted for verbal interpretations, 
individuals spoken to and the interpretations received in reference to the request t'ix reclassification of 
DTW -T -08-E-002!003!004. 

There is no documentation or intormation in the facility's system of records identifYing the specific 
individuals contacted for interpretations. The facility submitted the fennal "Request for Reclassification" 
to Central Terminal Operations. 

2. The name of the individual at ATO Temlinal, following discussions with AOV, that determined that 
the events were not to be considered operation (sic) errors or deviations. 

In response to item number 2, the facility provides a copy of tile memorandum from James Bedow, 
Acting Director of Safety Assurance to Doug Engelke, Manager of Terminal Quality Assurance. This 
memorandum supports reclassification of the events. 

3. A list of the application (sic) paragraphs in reference to DTW-T-08-E-002/003/004. 

The paragraphs consulted are found in FAA Order 7lI0.65. Ho\vever, a list of tile specific paragraphs 
consulted in this case does flot exist in a document found \vithin the facility's system of records. 

4. A list of any and all facilities contacted and a list of the individuals spoken to in reference to the 
request for reclassi fication of DTW -T -08-002/003/004. 

There is no record of the facilities contacted, nor individuals spoken to, contained in the facility"s system 
of records. 



and etcetera, with the detinition or oYan 
and dependent ()peration. 

The relevant directive is FAA Order 7 i 10.65 and the facility SOP. A copy of FAA Order 71 0.65 can 
be accessed at https:/lintranet.faa.govlFAAEmployeesisearchl?q=711O.65. A copy ofthe facility SOP 
can accessed at https://loa.fila.gov/ and using the browse function. 

6. Any and ail documents, orders. publications and etcetera, with the definition or description of an 
operational error and operational deviation. 

See FAA Order 7210.56 at 5-1- la. and b. respectively. A copy of FAA Order 7210.56 can be accessed at 
https:liintranet.faa,gov!FAAEmployees/search/?q=721 0.56 

Contact me should you have questions or concerns. 



NOTICE u.s. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

DETROIT METRO ATCT 

DTW N7110.156 

Effective Date: 
Immediately 

Cancellation Date: 
March 28. 2009 

SUBJ: PROCEDURES FOR TRANSITIONING BETWEEN SOUTH AND WEST 
CONFIGURA nONS. 

-~~-.--.---~ 

1. Purpose of This Notice. Establish defined transition procedures between South and West 
Flow configurations and cancel authorization to conduct Southwest Flow operations. 

2. Audience. This notice applies to DTW Tower employees, and all associated support 
personnel. 

3. Where Can I Find This Notice? This notice is available in all applicable DTW publications 
and the FAA Federal Directives Repository, bJ!ps:tnQ~:f~.!!~9.Q.Y1 

4. Cancellation. This Notice cancels Notice DTW N711 0.152, PROCEDURES FOR 
CONDUCTING SOUTHWEST FLOW. 

5. Explanation of Changes: This Notice establishes defined transition procedures between 
South and West Flow configurations. It also cancels authorization to conduct Runways 21 Rl27L 
Dependent and 22L127L Independent operations 

6. Procedures. 
a. Change Paragraph 6-9, page iv, Table of Contents of the DTW 7110.9 to read: 

6-9. TRANSITION PROCEDURES BETWEEN SOUTH AND WEST FLOW 
CONFIGURATIONS. 

b. Replace paragraph 6-9, RUNWAY'S 21RJ27L OPERATIONS of the DTW N7110.9 
with: 

6-9. TRANSITION PROCEDURES BETWEEN SOUTH AND WEST FLOW 
CONFIGURATIONS. 

a. Configuration transitions involving Runway 27L arrivals and Runways 21 RJ22L 
departures shall adhere to the following requirements: 

(1) To transition from a South flow to West flow configuration, the last departure 
from Runways 21 R or 22L shall have crossed the Runway 27L projected center line prior to the 

Distribution:Support Manager, Tower, Facility Files Initiated 8y:DTW-6 



Runway 27L arrival crossing the Runway 27L ILS Final Approach Fix or 5.3 nautical miles from 
the runway threshold. 

(2) To transition from a West flow to South flow configuration, the last arrival for 
Runway 27L shall have landed and be clear of Runway 27L prior to a Runway 21R or 22L 
departure being cleared for takeoff and commencing takeoff roll. 

Joseph Figliuolo III 
Air Traffic Manager 
Detroit Metro A TeT 





Guys, 

Mr. Kuhlmann was counseled over a situation that involved DAL1413. Mr. Gramrnes 
gave his interpretation and limited investigation of paragraph 3-7-2 of the 7110.65 in 
pointing out what he believes Mr. Kuhlmann did wrong. Mr. Grammes' interpretation 
only references the first paragraph of 3-7-2 and this is what I will address first. 

Mr. Grammes states in the first part of his interpretation, "The first ground controller 
would assign a runway (which Mr. Kuhlmann did) and issue taxi instructions that ground 
should (had to be corrected by Ms. Thompson to shall) confirm the aircraft has the 
correct runway assignment". Paragraph 3-7-2 of the 7110.65 states, "When a taxi 
clearance to a runway is issued to an aircraft, confirm the aircraft has the correct 
runway assignment." Mr. Kuhlmann did not issue a taxi clearance to a runway. He 
issued a taxi clearance to KIO with hold short instructions. 

Paragraph 3-7-2 (c) states, "SpecifY the runway for departure, taxi instructions, and hold 
short restrictions when an aircraft will be required to hold short of a runway or other 
points along the taxi route." This section covers what Mr. Kuhlmann did. He specified a 
departure runway and since the aircraft was issued a hold short instruction and not issued 
a taxi clearance to a runway, there is no requirement, nor is there one stated in this sub 
paragraph, for Mr. Kuhlmann to verify an assigned runway. If the pilot would have read 
back the incorrect runway, then Mr. Kuhlmann would have been obligated to verify and 
correct. 

On to Mr. Grammes' second paragraph. He states, "One exception may be deicing as the 
runway assignment would normally be issued by the ground controller as the aircraft 
comes out of the deice pad." Two of our pads, depending on what flow is being 
conducted, the local controller is responsible for the taxi instructions. Mr. Grammes does 
not speak of the instructions issued to other areas of the airport. 

This is also covered in paragraph 3-7-2 (a) which states, "When authorizing a vehicle to 
proceed on the movement area, or an aircraft to taxi to any point other than an assigned 
takeoff runway, absence of holding instructions authorizes an aircraft/vehicle to cross all 
taxiways and runways that intersect the taxi route. If it is the intent to hold the 
aircraft/vehicle short of any given point along the taxi route, issue the route, and then 
state the holding instructions." This would apply to aircraft taxiing to parking, deice pad 
and etcetera. Why we are not required to verify what area we taxied the aircraft to that is 
other than an assigned runway. We have numerous areas on the airport that we taxi 
aircraft that potentially could cross an active runway. A potential is a potential regardless 
of the beginning and ending points. 

If the Agency wanted it to be applied the way Mr. Grammes thinks it should be applied, 
then it should have been written that way. Paragraph 3-7-2 is poorly VvTitten nationally 
and subsequently poorly interpreted locally. This is why NA TeA filed a national 
grievance March 17, 2008 for the lack of a briefing and negotiation over this very 
paragraph. Facility interpretations of safety rules are not a good thing and why it should 



have been properly briefed and negotiated. It could have been look at by people who 
actually control aircraft and written properly to avoid the pitfalls of facility 
interpretations. 

How about a little common sense here. It clearly states that you need to confirm the 
runway when a taxi clearance to a runway is issued. We have never been briefed that if 
you do not taxi an aircraft to a runway we still need to verify the assigned runway. Can 
you just brief everyone that that is what you want and we just move on. 

It is clear to me that Mr. Kuhlmann has fallen victim to a poorly written and interpreted 
rule. Remove everything from his file in reference to the DAL1413 QAR and cease and 
desist any further performance discussions of runway assignment verification. 



1 

MOVEMENT 

Issue the route for the aircraft/vehicle to follow on the movement area in concise 
easy to understand terms. The taxi clearance shall include the specific route 

a nee to a runway is issued to an confirm the 
assignment. 

instructions with the runway assignment can be 
runway assignment. 

assign a rumvay and issue taxi instructJons that ground 
_::~!~~ti:l:d- ckmfinn th~ aibfratt has the correct runway assignment." 
'3(ti)J (AT. Lfit8)OQ.: 

one exception may be deicing as the runway assignment would normally be issued by the 
ground control a.s the aircraft comes out of the deice pad 

This is in place [Cl help alleviate exactly what happened. 
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This is our facility managers, Joe Figliuolo, response to my email over 7110.65, 
paragraph 3-7-2. My comments are integrated in italic. 

Some Background. 

There was a QAR inquiry from a Delta Pilot that the FLM's determined was a controller 
performance deficiency. 

Angela Thompson, (Ken Kuhlmann's FLM), identified the GSW controller Ken 
Kuhlmann as not verifying the runway assignment lAW: 7110.65 3-7-2. 

Ken was the first Ground Controller that spoke with this pilot and issued a runway 
assignment with taxi instructions that were lAW: 3-7-2 c. 
Example "runway 21R. taxi via Kilo, hold short of Kilo 10 contact ground 121.8" 
This is correct. Ken issued the instructions per sub paragraph (c) which does not direct 
the controller to verify the assigned runway; only the hold short instructions. Only 
paragraph 3-7-2 directs the controller to verify the assigned runway. 

Joe even contradicts himself in the first two paragraphs. Hefirst states that 3-7-2 is what 
he believes Ken violates by not verifying the runway assignment. Then he states that Ken 
issues taxi instructions in accordance with 3-7-2c which does not require the verifying of 
the assigned runway. 

The pilot did not read back the runway and confusion ensued the remainder of his 
movement out to the runway. The pilot stated he thought he was going to RY22L. 
Corifusion ensued because the pilot did not follow two control instructions after Ken 
switched the aircraft to the other ground controller. The facility did not file deviation 
paper work against pilot, only against Ken. 

This was brought to Kevin's, (Kevin Grammes, DTW OM), attention by Angela as the 
guidance had gone out to review "first level supervisor summary of action" regarding 
QARs with the OM prior to discussions with the employee. Angela stated that Ken did 
not agree with the FLM's conclusions that he technically did not taxi the aircraft to a 
runway but to Kilo 10. Actually it would be the other way around. Ken did not agree that 
he taxied the aircraft to a runway, but to K10, not the FLM 

Joe states later in the response, "The example of AT, (Angela), changing the wording 
from should to shall in the example I reviewed with her means to me the controller did 
not take the input provided and she had to mandate compliance". This word change 
occurred on April 18. If Grammes and Joe knew that Ken did not agree with Angela's 
conclusion as he stated above, then why was it not addressed in the first level supervisor 
summary of action. Kevin reviewed it prior to the discussion with the employee and yet 
K10 is not mentioned any where on the paper given to Ken. 

The word should that Grammes used was not being used in instructing Ken on what he 
should do, but on what he thinks a ground controller should do. Since it is being used in 



that context was the reason that the "should" was changed to a "shall" and not that Ken 
was not taking Angela's input. 

Angela asked for some input on this. She and Kevin reviewed the section of the 7110.65 
3-7-2 Taxi and Ground Movement Operations. He did not make an interpretation. He 
and Angela reviewed the section of the 7110.65 and they (and I) agreed it is common 
sense and reasonable to expect the first controller who is in contact with the pilot and 
issues taxi instructions with the intent that the aircraft is going to a runway to depart is in 
fact issuing taxi instructions to a runway. Note in this paragraph Joe once again does 
not mention 3-7-2c, only 3-7-2. Joe also states that he, Grammes, did not make an 
interpretation. Then what in the hell are "agreed it is common sense and reasonable to 
expect" and "the intent that the aircraft is going to a runway to depart is in fact" when he 
speaks of paragraph 3-7-2? 

Joe and Grammes interpreted 3-7-2 and all they came up vl'ith is what was given to Ken 
on April 18. Why was not any of their justification that is included in this response in the 
April 18 paper or in the briefing guide? I will tell you why. They are making this up as 
they go along. It has to be the controllers fault and they will try and manipulate the 
paragraph to hide their short comings and the poorly written national paragraph. 

This paragraph probably has the most pathetic sentence of the entire response. The use 
of "agreed it is common sense and reasonable", "with the intent" and "is in fact" goes 
against everything we are taught and apply as controllers. The rules and regulations we 
utilize are to be written to avoid everyone of those statements. 

In fact 3-7-2 c is an example of exactly that scenario. It is only an exact scenario 
because that is how they interpret 3-7-2. Does this not sound a lot like their rationale of 
the southwestjlow, dependent and independent, and their "because we say it is" 
attitude? Joe and Grammes did not know that anything below 3-7-2 even applied or 
existed for that matter until we brought it to their attention. 

Again, 3-7-2c is an example of Ken's scenario, not 3-7-2. If they can read into 3-7-2 so 
insightfully, what is the purpose 3-7-2c? 

The requirement to verify the correct runway assignment is in the first paragraph of 3-7-2 
and would apply to all following sections especially b and c which are examples of taxing 
aircraft to a runway for departure. If they want this to be applied in following sections, 
then it should have been written that way. Joe is basing this sentence on what he says is 
not an interpretation of 3-7-2 while using "would apply to all following sections 
especially" verbiage. 

The example of AT changing the wording from should to shall in the example I reviewed 
with her means to me the controller did not take the input provided and she had to 
mandate compliance. There is, was and will be no actions by Ken that ever appeared to 
be unprofessional. Ken is the consummate professional and unfortunately management 
at DTW is unable to recognize this because they are not familiar with the job H'e do. In 



this case, Angela and Ken put their heads together and corrected a poorly written 
document. Grammes cannot even differentiate between should and shall. 

IjKen wanted to be obstinate he would have said yes he will comply with the way the 
guidance was written with should instead of shall and not say a thing to Angela. Then 
wait for the ensuing "that our intent was infact common sense and should have been 
reasonable for them to expect" argument. He did not do that. He worked with Angela to 
correct Grammes' stupidity. 

The exception provided was not all inclusive or an interpretation but an attempt to help 
explain the differences between taxiing an aircraft to a runway for departure and taxiing 
an aircraft to a point on the airport such as a deice pad. Why are not required to confirm 
the deice pad? The exact same situation can arise. We have deice pads that we taxi to 
and have to cross active runways. The same 
andfacu; apply, right? Well I guess it would depend on your interpretation or 
definition of interpretation. 

Ken is not being singled out, however this issue was brought to light through the QAR 
process. In addition to Angela having a performance discussion with Ken. Kevin, on 
4/16109, contacted the 3 chief Pilots for Delta 1 NWA who operate here at DTW, and 
Clint Smith in charge of Delta /NW A OPS. As it appears we are seeing and will see 
more unfamiliar crews as a result of the merger. I expressed my concerns that pilots are 
assuming or pre briefing runways based upon assumptions and that a reminder to them to 
listen to what the actual assignment is and if unsure to verify. If the issue arose through 
the QAR process, then deal with it as such. Rut out a proper briefing guide and do an on 
the spot correction with Ken and this would have been over the day it happened. Ken is 
being Singled out by virtue of the performance discussion. Something is wrong so it must 
be the controllers fault. 

Kevin also sent a request to SM, (Support Manager), for Training on 4/20 for a briefing 
for all the controllers on 3-7-2 be provided. This is similar to the same requests he made 
after performance issues with Braking Action Advisories and FOD reports. It took 
management over a week to put together the attached briefing guide and does not include 
one word written in this response a/what is expected of the controllers. It is only an 
entire copy of3-7-2 and includes the sub paragraphs. Only 3-7-2 and sub paragraph d 
are highlighted in red. Sub paragraph d covers the request of runway hold short 
instructions when not received and I am at a loss as to why it is highlighted. 

So now when a controller correctly applies 3-7-2 c, we will go through the same damn 
thing we just went through. If their "intent, was in fact cornmon sense, reasonable for 
them to expect" then put in the briefing guide that the initial controller shall assign a 
departure runway and confirm the aircraft has the correct runway assignment or words 
to that affect. 



Kevin has also asked the FLM's to make this an awareness with the controllers on the 
need to use standard phraseology and methods and that we are facing more and more new 
crews who are not familiar with the airport and extra vigilance will be required. 

There was a phone call from the pilot of DAL1413 that was taken in the tower by a 
controller in charge, not a member of management. Not one member of management 
asked the controller in charge what the pilot said or what the content of the conversation 
was. 

The local investigation was limited and poorly executed and therefore the subsequent 
interpretation and direction grossly flawed. This all stems from paragraph 3-7-2 being 
inadequately written nationally and incompetent leadership. 



Mandatory Briefing Item 

** GROUND OPERATIONS** 
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instructions with the runway assignment can be 
runway assignment. 

Movement of aircraft or vehicles on nonmovement areas is the responsibiiity of 
or the airport management 

a. \J\Ihen authorizing a vehicle to proceed on the movement area, or an aircraft to 
taxi any point other than an assigned takeoff runway, absence of holding 
instructions authorizes an aircraft/vehicle to cross all taxiways and runways that 

the taxi route. If it is the intent to hold the aircraft/vehicle short of any 
given point along the route, issue the route, and then state the holding 
instructions, 

l\;1ovement of aircraft or vehicles on nonmovement areas is the responsibility of 
P i/o t, the aircraft operator. or the airport management. 

PHRASEOLOGYc 
HOLD POSITION. 

HOLD FOR (reason) 

CROSS (runway/taxiway) 

or 

TAXI/CONTINUE TAXIING/PROCEEDNIA (route)] 

or 

number or taxiways, 

TO (location), 

or 



y 

(traffic) as necessary) 

BEHIND (traffic). 

EXAMPLE-
"Cross Runway Two Eight Left." 

"Taxllcontinue taxiing/proceed to the hangar." 

"Taxi/continue taxiing/proceed straight ahead then via ramp to the hangar. " 

'Taxi/continue taxiing/proceed on Taxiway Charlie, hold short of Runway Two 
Seven" 

or 

''Taxi/continue taxiing/proceed on Charlie, hold short of Runway Two Seven." 

\Nhen authorizing an aircraft to taxi to an assigned takeoff runway and hold 
short instructions are not issued, specify the runway preceded by "taxi to," and 
issue taxi instructions. This authorizes the aircraft to "cross" all runways/taxiways 
which the taxi route intersects except the assigned takeoff runway. This does not 
authorize the aircraft to "enter" or "cross" the assigned takeoff runway at any 

TAX! TO RUIVVVA Y (number) VIA (route). 

Six via Taxiway Echo," 
or 

to via Echo." 



(route), 

HOLD SHORT number) 

or 

SHORT OF (location) 

or 

ON (taxi runup, pad. etc), 

if necessarj, 

TRAFFIC (traffic information), 

or 

FOR (reason). 

EXAMPLE~ 

instructions, 
short a 

"Runway Three Six Left, taxi via taxiway Charlie, hold short of Runway Two 
Seven " 

or 

Six via Charlie, hold short of Runway Two Seven 



Six 

Three Left, via hold 

read back hold instructions." 

"Cleveland Tower, American Sixty Three is ready for departure." 

"American Sixty Three, hold short of Runway Two Three Left, traffic one mile 
final. " 

"American Sixty Three, Roger." 

"Arner/can Sixty Three, read back hold instructions." 

;'OPS Three proceed via taxiway Charlie hold short of Runway Two Seven n 

or 

"OPS Three proceed via Charlie hold short of Runway Two Seven." 

"OPS Three, Roger." 

"OPS Three, read back hold instructions. n 

Read back hold instructions phraseology may be initiated for any point on a 
movement area when the controller believes the read back is necessary. 

e. progressive taxi/ground movement instructions when: 

1. A pilot/operator requests. 

due to traffic or field conditions, 



route is 

REFERENCE-
.Runway Proxffnity 

and Ground f\1overnent Operation 

a taxiing or a 

if necessary). 

(runway/taxiway) WfTHOUT DELA Y. 





November 29, 2006 

Conference Room 1 

See Attached 

Minutes of VL'-'''"-,CHH)'H and Safety Meeting held on 15, were 

Old Business/Updates 

Runwav 3R 

Steve Wiesner advised everyone a p1.IDch list is being done. Runway 3R flight check is 
scheduled for Thursday, November 30,2006 at 0500 LCL (approximately two hours). 

Pavement Repairs 

Bruce Greenberg mentioned no closures were planned. Mr. Greenberg also mentioned 
after the FAA inspection a closure would be asked for to move the wind sock on 
Runway4R. 

Roadway-Concourse B20-McNamara Terminal south end 

Mr. Greenberg advised the roadway is closed to traffic and all paint has been eradicated. 

New Business 

Rodney Harris questioned a sign on Taxiway Q for holding aircraft short of the 4R Light 
Line. Mr. Harris suggested ALSFII \vould be appropriate. The current hold short signs 
are spaced 1500 feet apart and could cause delay issues under certain conditions. 
Dianne Walker advised Airfield Operations \Yill do some research and 'vvill have 
information available by the next Airfield meeting. 

Wade Kellogg asked about the start up date and completion date for work on Runway 3R. 
Dan Amann advised \vork is planned to start sometime in April 2007 and completion 
November 2007. 

Next Meeting 

Wednesday, December 13,2006,9:00 A.M., Conference Room 1. 

Christine Kring, Clerical Specialist! Airfield Operations - ACM 11-29-06 
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Date : CJ5 .05 :09 

To: ,\ll l o\\er Personnel 

Fr()I11 : Rona ld D. BaZ1nan. Support ManagcL DTW ATCT 

Prepared h\: Rodney Harri s. x5024 

Subject: Detailed/Correct Taxi Instructions 
-. . . .. , ====--======================-='"-'-"""':.= 
Durinu a recent Runwav Safetv Action Team meetin,Q conducted on A10ril 22. we recei ,cd ... .,. '" --
numerous pilot concerns regarding taxi instructions from the south terminal circles 3N & 4l\ 
westbound to j oin my Y The cited instructions include "'raxi to RUJ1'vyay T\vohvo Len via 
Lniform. Yankee", but there is no mention oft\\;y K-IO in that routing as required by Paragraph 
3-7-2 of FAAO 7110,65, 

3-7-2. TAXI AND GROUND MOVEMENT OPERATIONS 
Issue the route for the aircraft/vehicle to follow on the movement area in concise and easy to 
understand terms. The taxi clearance shall include the specific route to fol lt)\v. \Vhcn a taxi 
clearance to a rumvay is issued to an ai rcraft confirm the aircraft has the correct rUlW,a) 
assignment. 

An example or correct phraseology would be --Taxi to Runway Tvvo T\\/o Left: via Unii(ln11. Kilo 
l el1. 'r"ankcc". 

With the amount o rnev\, Delta pilots thai \vill be stationed here. the chance of pilot confusion 
rises with clearances that are not detailed or correct. All controllers ml!~ issue correct and 
de tailed instructions to all pi lots each and every time taxi clearances are issued. 

Although our goal 0 (-safe surface operations is a shared responsibility vvith all users and interests 
\ 

on the tield. please ensure your phra;:;eology complies with the paragraph abo\c to pre\ enl 
confu.s ion and a possible rumvay inc~ll'sion or surface incident. 
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